
Thursday, October 1, 2020 Agenda  1 

PARKS AND COMMUNITY ENRICHMENT COMMISSION
Sumiti Mehta, District 1 

Eugene Loew, District 2  

David Guerrero, District 3  

Julie Murphy, District 4 

Joe Flores, District 5  

Tyler Aguilar, District 6 

Devin Lavelle, District 7 (Vice-Chair) 

Chinua Rhodes, District 8 

Terri Kletzman, At Large  

Jason Law, At Large 

Rita Gallardo-Good, Mayoral (Chair) 

 
COMMISSION STAFF
Mario Lara, Director
Maggie Le, Support Services Manager 
Sheryl Patterson, Senior Deputy City Attorney 

Thursday, October 1, 2020 
6:00 p.m. 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 

In response to Governor's Executive Order N-29-20 and the Resolution 
Declaring the Existence of a Local Emergency Relating to the COVID-19 Pandemic, adopted by the 

City of Sacramento City Council, the Parks & Community Enrichment Commission meetings are 
closed to the public to align with local and federal guidelines and social distancing 

recommendations for the containment of the coronavirus. A dedicated phone line has been 
established for public participation during the meeting related to a specific agenda item or matters 

not on the agenda.  To give your public comment directly to the legislative body during the 
meeting, call (916) 808-7213 and follow the instructions given. 

 

Members of the public are encouraged to submit public comments electronically via eComment 
through the City’s official website at 

http://sacramento.granicus.com/ViewPublisher.php?view_id=21 eComment is set to remain open 
throughout the meeting.

Live video streams and indexed archives of meetings are available via the internet. Visit the City’s 
official website at: http://sacramento.granicus.com/ViewPublisher.php?view_id=21

Notice to Lobbyists:  When addressing the legislative bodies you must identify yourself as a lobbyist and 
announce the client/business/organization you are representing  
(City Code 2.15.160). 

Government Code 54950 (The Brown Act) requires that a brief description of each item to be transacted or 
discussed be posted at least 24 hours prior to the Special meeting.  The City posts Agendas at City Hall as 
well as offsite meeting locations. 

The order and estimated time for Agenda items are listed for reference and may be taken in any order 
deemed appropriate by the legislative body. 

The Agenda provides a general description and staff Recommendation; however, the legislative bodies 
may take action other than what is recommended.  Full staff reports are available for public review on the 
City’s website and include all attachments and exhibits.  “To Be Delivered” and “Supplemental” reports will 
be published as they are received.   

Agenda 
Parks and Community 

Enrichment Commission 
915 I Street, Council Chambers - NCH 

Published by the 
Youth, Parks, & Community Enrichment 

Department 
(916) 808-5172 



Thursday, October 1, 2020 Agenda  2 

AGENDA 
Thursday, October 1, 2020 

   6:00 p.m.  
Council Chambers, 915 I Street, Sacramento, CA 95814

Open Session – 6:00 p.m. 

Roll Call 

Public Comments-Matters Not on the Agenda (2 minutes per speaker) 

Call (916) 808-7213 and Dial 1 to Make a Comment on Matters Not on the Agenda

Consent Calendar Estimated Time: 5 minutes

All items listed under the Consent Calendar are considered and acted upon by one Motion.  
Anyone may request an item be removed for separate consideration. 
 
Call (916) 808-7213 and Dial 2 to Make a Comment on Item 1
 
1. Parks and Community Enrichment Commission Meeting Minutes 

Location: Citywide 
Recommendation: Approve Commission meeting minutes for September 3, 2020 
Contact: Maggie Le, Support Services Manager (916) 808-1040, Department of Youth, 
Parks, & Community Enrichment 
 

Discussion Calendar Estimated Time:  60 Minutes 

Discussion Calendar items include an oral presentation including those recommending “receive 
and file.” 

Call (916) 808-7213 and Dial 3 to Make a Comment on Item 2
 

2. Prop 68 Update 
Location: Citywide 
Recommendation: Informational. 
Contact: Janelle Oishi, Program Specialist, (916) 808-1016, Department of Youth, Parks, 
& Community Enrichment 

  



Thursday, October 1, 2020 Agenda  3 

Call (916) 808-7213 and Dial 4 to Make a Comment on Item 3
 

3. Access Leisure Program Update 
Location:  Citywide 
Recommendation: Informational. 
Contact: Rosanne Bernardy, Recreation Superintendent, (916) 808-1590, Department of 
Youth, Parks, & Community Enrichment 

 
Call (916) 808-7213 and Dial 5 to Make a Comment on Item 4

4. Measure U Program Update  
Location: Citywide 
Recommendation: Informational 
Contact: Mario Lara, Director, (916) 808-1041, Department of Youth, Parks, & Community 
Enrichment 
 

Call (916) 808-7213 and Dial 6 to Make a Comment on Item 5 
 

5. Sacramento Valley Station Specific Plan – Park Elements 
Location: Citywide 
Recommendation: Informational 
Contact: Raymond Costantino, Parks Planning & Development Services Manager, (916) 
808-1941, Department of Youth, Parks, & Community Enrichment 
 

Call (916) 808-7213 and Dial 7 to Make a Comment on Item 6 
 

6. Youth, Parks, & Community Enrichment Director Report (Oral): Update on COVID-19 
Related Impacts 
Location:  Citywide 
Recommendation: Informational 
Contact: Mario Lara, Director, (916) 808-1041, Department of Youth, Parks, & Community 
Enrichment 
 

Call (916) 808-7213 and Dial 8 to Make a Comment on Item 7 
 

7. Youth, Parks, & Community Enrichment Director Report (Oral): Review Highlights for 
September 
Location:  Citywide 
Recommendation: Informational 
Contact: Mario Lara, Director, (916) 808-1041, Department of Youth, Parks, & Community 
Enrichment 

 
Member Comments-announcements, Questions and Meeting/Conference Reports



Thursday, October 1, 2020 Agenda  4 

Adjournment



Item #1

September 3, 2020 Meeting Minutes  1 

 

Meeting Minutes of the 
Parks and Community Enrichment Commission 

September 3, 2020 

   6:00 p.m.  
City Hall – 915 I Street – Council Chambers 

  
 

Open Session – 6:00 p.m. 

Roll Call  
 
The meeting was called to order by Chair Good at 6:03 p.m. 
 
Present: Commissioners Aguilar, Flores, Good, Guerrero, Lavelle, Law, Mehta, Murphy, and 

Rhodes
 
Absent: Commissioner Kletzman 

 
Public Comments-Matters Not on the Agenda 

None. 

Consent Calendar 

1. Parks and Community Enrichment Commission Meeting Minutes
Location: Citywide 
Recommendation: Approve Commission meeting minutes for August 6, 2020 
Contact: Maggie Le, Support Services Manager, (916) 808-1040, Department of Youth, 
Parks, & Community Enrichment 

Action: Motion to approve Commission meeting minutes. 

Moved/Seconded (Lavelle/Mehta) 
Motion carried 8-Yes 0-No 2-Absent (Kletzman and Guerrero)

Discussion Calendar



Item #1

September 3, 2020 Meeting Minutes  2 

2. Park Safety Ranger Unit Update 
Location: Citywide
Recommendation: Informational.
Contact: Danielle Luther, Park Safety Ranger Supervisor, (916) 808-3815, Robert Conroy, 
Park Ranger Supervisor, 916-808-3802, Department of Youth, Parks, & Community 
Enrichment 
 
Danielle Luther and Robert Conroy, Park Safety Ranger Supervisors, provided an 
overview of the Park Safety Ranger Unit and services it provides to the community prior to 
the pandemic and services they provided during the pandemic. 
 
Commissioner Mehta inquired if the Department does any outreach to inform the 
community of the services provided by the Park Safety Ranger Unit.  Danielle Luther 
responded that the Department does not have any formal outreach due to staffing 
challenges; however, the Park Safety Ranger Unit works closely with the Police 
Department and is invited to their outreach events.
 
Vice Chair Lavelle inquired about recent protests and how it impacts the Park Safety 
Ranger Unit.  Danielle Luther responded that Police Department responds to these events 
and takes the lead. 
 
Commissioner Flores inquired regarding the response time of 3.46 minutes for 2020, if the 
decrease in response time is due to COVID-19 from March through June?Since some 
Park Safety Rangers are located at community centers due to the pandemic, are they 
closer in distance to respond quicker to calls for service, and what are some activities that 
trigger arrests? Robert Conroy responded that the Police Department records all 
response times for both the Police Department and the Park Safety Ranger Unit and 
provides the unit with the information.  The response time covers January 1, 2020 through 
June 30, 2020.  In terms of arrests, it is primarily the contact the Park Safety Ranger has 
made with an individual due to a violation and as part of a records check, the individual 
comes up as having a warrant which leads to an arrest.  Danielle Luther also responded 
that the largest contributing factor of the decrease in response time is due to COVID-19 as 
there are not many people out.  Park Safety Rangers are citywide and not assigned to 
specific locations and during the pandemic the nature of day-to-day operations have 
changed because there are not the same amount of people out in the parks; thus, the 
volume has decreased which allows Park Safety Rangers to respond quicker. 
 
Chair Good thanked the Park Safety Ranger Unit for their service. 

 
3. Youth Workforce Development Programming Update 

Location:  Citywide 
Recommendation: Informational. 



Item #1

September 3, 2020 Meeting Minutes  3 

Contact: Kris Wimberly, Interim Superintendent, (916) 808-6172, Department of Youth, 
Parks, & Community Enrichment 

Kris Wimberly, Interim Superintendent, and her team provided an overview of the Prime 
Time Teen, Landscape & Learning (L&L), and Workforce Investment & Innovation Act 
(WIOA) programs.
 
Commissioner Mehta, Guerrero, Flores, Law, and Chair Good provided positive comments 
regarding the programs.
 
Commissioner Flores inquired for staff to share how the L&L program has changed due to 
COVID-19 and what is the demographic served for WIOA.  Davide Gaines, Program 
Supervisor, explained that the L&L program has implemented stationary crews to comply 
with social distancing protocols.  Ken McColluch, Program Supervisor, provided examples 
of those who are eligible for the WIOA program and offered to provide specific 
demographic information later on as that information is not readily available. 
 
Commissioner Law inquired about what vocational skills are becoming more important for 
youth now due to the pandemic and the virtual environment and how has the programs 
incorporate this into strategies moving forward.  Kris Wimberly explained the technology 
gap for young people are challenges and how the City staff are considering these barriers 
in their strategies when developing programs.

4. Recognition of Volunteer Recognition Awardees  
Location:  Citywide 
Recommendation: Informational 
Contact: Maggie Le, Support Services Manager, (916) 808-1040, Department of Youth, 
Parks, & Community Enrichment 

Mario Lara, Director, provided an update regarding the online recognition of the Volunteer 
Recognition awardees.

Commissioner Mehta provided positive comments regarding the recognition for the 
awardees for District 1.
 
Chair Good provided positive comments regarding the recognition program and mentioned 
the Fosters & Paws organization that was selected to receive an award. 

 
5. Youth, Parks, & Community Enrichment Director Report (Oral): Update on COVID-19 

Related Impacts 
Location:  Citywide 
Recommendation: Informational 



Item #1

September 3, 2020 Meeting Minutes  4 

Contact: Mario Lara, Director, (916) 808-1041, Department of Youth, Parks, & Community 
Enrichment 

 
Mario Lara, Director, provided an update on Department operations during COVID-19 and 
mentioned that since Sept. 1st, the County Public Health Order has been amended for the 
9th time and now aligns with the State’s tiered system.
 
Vice Chair Lavelle inquired if there is any update on opening up playgrounds.  Mario Lara 
responded that this is something that is being discussed regionally; however, under the 
current County Public Health Order playgrounds are still off limits.
 
Chair Good requested that the Department continue to provide updates to the 
Commission. 
 

6. Youth, Parks, & Community Enrichment Director Report (Oral): Review Highlights 
for August 
Location:  Citywide 
Recommendation: Informational
Contact: Mario Lara, Director, (916) 808-1041, Department of Youth, Parks, & Community 
Enrichment

Mario Lara, Director, mentions that in August the City has experienced not only the 
pandemic, but has also experienced triple digit heat, fires causing poor air quality, social 
protests, and transitioning from summer programming to fall programming.  This highlights 
the dedication of staff working through these circumstance.  He also thanked staff for their 
work.  The Youth Division Manager is currently working behind the scenes at City Hall to 
assist the meeting, so Mario provided the Youth Division highlights: 

 Summer at Virtual City Hall – 55 graduates, 10 graduates were returning youth
 Junior Giants at Home – became virtual program and operated June through July 

and wrapped up in August
 Sacramento Youth Commission continue to meet virtually and recently had a joint 

City Council meeting

 STEAM Camps – 7 weeks of programming which wrapped up in August and served 
1,683 registered participants

 Essential Worker Childcare – served 386 participants 

Jackie Beecham, Community Enrichment Division, provided highlights and mentioned:
 4 pools operated since July

o 10,500 swimmers attend recreational swimming, 
o 1,100 youth participated in swim lessons,  
o 1,200 lap swimmers, and  
o 600 water aerobics participants.

 Community Centers



Item #1

September 3, 2020 Meeting Minutes  5 

o Distributed over 57,000 meals to youth in partnership with Natomas Unified 
School District 

o Youth and Teen Summer Camps provided at six community centers
Kids Camp served over 2,092 youth
Teen Scene served 321 youth

o Continued mask distribution
o Activated cooling centers and clean air centers 
o Reservation office began issuing field use permits for youth sports 

conditioning 
o Virtual programming at centers 

 Resume Artist in Residency program at Community Centers in fall
 Older Adults 

o Virtual programming – 510 hours of virtual programming for participants 
o Wellness calls 
o Food delivery for seniors 

 Access Leisure 
o Training over 70 participants to learn Zoom 
o Parent and caregiver virtual support groups 

 Camp Sacramento 
o Over 131 daily reservations for modified campground program 

 
Tony Ulep, Park Maintenance Manager, provided an update regarding: 

 3 Farmers Markets 
 Fitness classes in the parks 
 Maintenance staff continue maintain parks 
 Challenges with smoke and COVID-19 
 Cesar Chavez park was cleaned up due to recent social protest 

 
Raymond Constantino, Park Planning and Development Services Manager, provided an 
update regarding: 

 Launched the online community outreach plan for Park Master Plan Update 2040 
o Goal is to get 3,000 questionnaires filled out 

 
Mario Lara mentions that Administrative team has been working hard to process purchase 
orders, contracts, and reports with quick turn around to support programming.  The 
Department is also recruiting Recreation Aides. 
 
Chair Good appreciates having staff provide highlights.  She also inquired about the cost 
for cleanup from social protests, if the expenses are General Fund, and how long the 
childcare program will continue operations.  Tony Ulep responded and mentioned that the 
Cesar Chavez park cleanup expenses are being tracked by a code that may be eliglbe for 
reimbursment but are General Fund expenses.  Mario Lara responded that Sac CLASS, a 
CARES Act funded program, is the childcare program that started today and will continue 



Item #1

September 3, 2020 Meeting Minutes  6 

through late November and Natomas Unified School District also allowed 4th R back on 
campus.  He also thanked the Public Information Officer that has been assisting YPCE with 
blog posts.

 
 

Member Comments-Ideas, Questions and Meeting/Conference Reports

Commissioner Guerrero provided an update on the expanstion of the futsal court at Northgate 
Park.  There is a park cleanup on Saturday from 9:00 AM to 12:00 PM.   

Commissioner Law acknowledged Commissioner Murphy and YPCE Parks staff for addressing 
the lighting issue at Miller park as he saw some people trying to load their boats and had a 
difficult time due to lack of lighting at night.
 
Commissioner Mehta thanked Mario Lara and staff for upkeep of parks.  She also mentioned 
that there is still a Farmers Market and yoga in the park in District 1 on Saturday from 8:00 AM 
to 1:00 PM. 
 
Commissioner Murphy encouraged everyone to attend the new Farmers Market at Winn Park 
on Wednesday nights from 3:00 PM to 7:00 PM, which will be a year-round market. 
 
Chair Good reminded Commissioners to submit nomindations for the upcoming Volunteer 
Recognition Award for Community Enrichment and YPCE categories by September 30, 2020 
and thanked staff for the informative meeting and thanked Commissioners for their dedication to 
the community. 
 
Adjournment 

Chair Good adjourned the meeting at 7:56 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted:

Maggie Le, Support Services Manager
Department of Youth, Parks, & Community Enrichment

Approved by: 

Rita Good, Chair 
Parks and Community Enrichment Commission



Item #

Meeting Date: 10/01/20

Report Type: Discussion 

Title: Proposition 68 Update

Location: Citywide 

Recommendation: Informational  

Contact: Janelle Oishi, Program Specialist, (916) 808-1016, Youth, Parks & Community Enrichment 

Presenter: Janelle Oishi, Program Specialist, (916) 808-1016, Youth, Parks & Community 
Enrichment 

Department: Youth, Parks, & Community Enrichment 

Division: Fiscal Administration 

Dept ID: 19001011

Attachments:
01 Description/Analysis 

Submitted By: Janelle Oishi, Program Specialist 

Approved By: Mario Lara, Director

Signature:

Parks & Community 
Enrichment 

Commission Report 
915 I Street, 3rd Floor

www.CityofSacramento.org



Item #2 

Attachment 01 – Description/Analysis
 
Issue: Proposition 68, the California Drought, Water, Parks, Climate, Coastal Protection, and Outdoor 
Access for All Act of 2018 provides funding for parks, natural resources protection, climate 
adaptation, water quality, and flood protection. Proposition 68 recognizes the inherent 
underinvestment in parks, trails, and outdoor infrastructure in underserved areas and therefore 
prioritizes improved access for disadvantaged communities. Standards for grant programs funded 
through Proposition 68 include workforce education and training, vocational opportunities for 
disadvantaged communities, and standards of outreach for marginalized populations.  

There are over 70 grant programs which were funded through Proposition 68, administered across a 
continuum of state agencies. Currently, the grant program with an open application period is the 
Statewide Park Program (SPP), through California Parks and Recreation, Office of Grants and Local 
Services (OGALS). In its final round of funding, the Statewide Park Program will make available 
$395.3 million for proposals to create new parks and recreation opportunities in critically underserved 
communities across the state. The grant program prioritizes meaningful engagement with residents
where park designs represent each community’s unique recreation needs. The grant application 
deadline is December 14, 2020.

Policy Considerations: None.
 
Economic Impacts: None. 
 
Environmental Considerations: None.

Sustainability: Not Applicable

Commission/Committee Action:  None. 

Rationale for Recommendation: None.

Financial Considerations: None.

Local Business Enterprise (LBE): Not Applicable



Item #3 

Meeting Date: 10/01/20

Report Type: Discussion 

Title: Access Leisure Program Update 

Location: Citywide  

Recommendation: Informational.  

Contact: Jackie Beecham, Recreation Manager, (916) 808-3818; Rosanne Bernardy, Recreation 
Superintendent, (916) 808-1590, Youth, Parks & Community Enrichment 

Presenter: Jenny Yarrow, General Recreation Supervisor, (916) 808-6017, Youth, Parks & 
Community Enrichment  

Department: Youth, Parks, & Community Enrichment 

Division: Community Enrichment/Access Leisure 

Dept ID: 19001541

Attachments: 
01 Description/Analysis 
 
 

 
Submitted By: Jackie Beecham, Recreation Manager 

Rosanne Bernardy, Recreation Superintendent  
 

Approved By: Mario Lara, Director

Signature:

 

Parks & Community 
Enrichment 

Commission Report 
915 I Street, 3rd Floor

www.CityofSacramento.org



Item #3 

Attachment 01 – Description/Analysis

Issue: The Youth, Parks, & Community Enrichment Department values inclusive and equitable 
programming and opportunities that support and empower the diverse community of Sacramento.
The Access Leisure section provides accessible recreation programs and services that optimize 
quality of life and provide enhanced life experiences to people with disabilities. Programs include a 
variety of recreational and competitive sports, social and leisure functions, and outdoor educational, 
and residential and day camping adventures. 

The Access Leisure section quickly adapted to unexpected challenges brought forward by COVID-19 
and have continued to deliver essential services and recreation opportunities to support people with 
physical, intellectual, and/or developmental disabilities.  Young people with intellectual and 
developmental disabilities have connected virtually with peers and staff over Zoom sessions that 
focus on fun engagement and interaction, including virtual graduation parties, game nights, talent 
shows, movie nights and more.  Participants have also been provided daily opportunities on 
Facebook, with at-home activities and video tutorials for recreational experiences at home or in local 
parks and neighborhoods.  In addition, with strict COVID-19 safety protocols in place, Access 
Leisure's sports program for people with physical disabilities has resumed on a very limited basis and 
activities will be added as County Public Health Orders permit. 
 
The Access Leisure section also plays a critical role in supporting families and caregivers of people 
with disabilities.  Recognizing the stress families are under during the pandemic, parent/caregiver 
virtual support groups have been held where strategies are shared for healthy communications and 
positive behavior management. 
 
In alignment with YPCE’s renewed focus on youth development, the Access Leisure section will 
continue to collaborate with Community Centers to expand opportunities for youth and families, and 
will expand department-wide Inclusion Training to support staff with the foundational knowledge and 
skills to deliver inclusive programs for youth.  Additionally, through new and continued partnerships 
with school districts and other outside organizations, Access Leisure is providing support for students 
with intellectual and/or developmental disabilities through high school and as they transition to 
adulthood. 
 
Policy Considerations: None. 
 
Economic Impacts: None. 
 
Environmental Considerations: None. 
 
Sustainability: Not Applicable 
 
Commission/Committee Action:  None. 
 
Rationale for Recommendation: None. 
 
Financial Considerations: None. 
 
Local Business Enterprise (LBE): Not Applicable 
 



Item #4 

Meeting Date: 10/01/2020

Report Type: Discussion 

Title: Measure U Program Updates

Location: Citywide 

Recommendation: Informational.

Contact: Mario Lara, Director, (916) 808-1041, Department of Youth, Parks, & Community 
Enrichment

Presenter: Mario Lara, Director, (916) 808-1041, Department of Youth, Parks, & Community 
Enrichment

Department: Youth, Parks, & Community Enrichment

Division: Fiscal Administration

Dept ID: 19001011

Attachments: 
01 Description/Analysis 
02 YPCE FY 2019/20 Measure U Budget
03 YPCE FY 2020/21 Measure U Budget

 
Submitted By: Maggie Le, Support Services Manager 

 
Approved By: Mario Lara, Director

Signature:

 

Parks & Community 
Enrichment 

Commission Report 
915 I Street, 3rd Floor

www.CityofSacramento.org



Item #4 

Attachment 01 – Description/Analysis
 
Issue: The Youth, Parks, & Community Enrichment Department’s (YPCE) FY2019/20 Adopted 
Measure U budget totaled $14.9 million and includes 188.78 FTE positions. Funding supported 
programs and services in the following categories: Aquatics, Community Centers, Hot Spots, Fiscal 
Management Services, Summer at City Hall, Older Adult Services, Other Recreation Programs, Park 
Maintenance, Park Safety Services, Teen Programs, and Youth Pop-Ups.  However, the Youth Pop-
Ups program ($1.3 million) is managed through the City Manager’s Office and not included in this 
report. 
 
In FY2020/21, YPCE’s Adopted Measure U budget totals $14.4 million and includes 188.78 FTE 
positions.  Funding supports the same programs and services listed above in FY2019/20.
 
Policy Considerations: This report is consistent with the City Council’s policy direction and 
approved FY2019/20 and FY2020/21 budgets.
 
Economic Impacts: None. 
 
Environmental Considerations: None. 
 
Sustainability: Not Applicable. 
 
Commission/Committee Action:  None. 

Rationale for Recommendation: None.

Financial Considerations: None.

Local Business Enterprise (LBE): Not Applicable.



Attachment 2



Attachment 3



Item #

Meeting Date: 10/01/20

Report Type: Discussion 

Title: Sacramento Valley Station Area Plan/Railyards Specific Plan

Location: Citywide or District #3 and #4

Recommendation: Informational 

Contact: Dana Repan, Senior Planner, (916) 808-2762; Raymond Costantino, Division Manager, 
916-808-1941; Department of Youth, Parks, & Community Enrichment

Presenter: Greg Taylor, Supervising Architect, (916) 808-5268, Department of Public Works

Department: Youth, Parks, & Community Enrichment 

Division: Park Planning and Development Services 

Dept ID: 19001121

Attachments: 
01 Description/Analysis 

Submitted By: Dana Repan, Senior Planner

Approved By: Mario Lara, Director

Signature:

Youth, Parks, & 
Community Enrichment 

Report 
915 I Street, 3rd Floor

www.CityofSacramento.org



Item #

Attachment 01 – Description/Analysis

Issue: The Sacramento Valley Station Area Plan provides a phased approach to the vision for the 
City-owned site, The Phase 1 project, completed in 2012, constructed new tracks and platforms 
located at the northern edge of the site. The historic station renovation was completed in 2017 and is 
designated as Phase 2. Phase 3 will be a series of sub-phases to expand the transportation 
infrastructure to accommodate all modes of transit and support high-capacity passenger flows. 

The Sacramento Valley Station (SVS) is currently the 7th busiest Amtrak served station in the country. 
The 2018 California State Rail Plan envisions SVS to become the predominate passenger rail and 
regional bus hub, connecting the Sacramento region and extending to all Northern California counties 
and into Nevada. The SVS Area Plan projects a 20-year vision for the expansion needs to 
accommodate these new services and it creates a vision of a transit district destination that 
predominately favors pedestrian and bicycle mobility within the site and connections to transit. 
Therefore, the large existing surface parking which exists today is envisioned to be replaced by parks 
and open space with diminished parking contained in a district parking structure and bus station 
identified as the Bus Mobility Center. 

Historically, from the station’s opening in 1926 under the ownership of the private Southern Pacific 
Railroad, the station served as a backdrop to many public outdoor events that included parades, 
public oratories, and large public gatherings, numbering in the thousands, to hear speeches by 
presidents and other political leaders. The open space goals of the SVS Area Plan seeks to bring 
multiple user groups together, including transit patrons, residents of the plan area, Central City 
residents, and the broad community of Sacramento and the regions the station connects through a 
series of defined landscapes. While the parks, plazas, and open spaces are to be officially named 
with the approval of the master plans, the proposed names will be representative of the facility use 
and the historical use of the SVS Plan Area. 

Fronting the historic station is “Civic Plaza Park.” This 1.49-acre park is envisioned to pay homage to 
the historic building. It also provides pathways that connect the urban center to the riverfront to the 
west, culminating in a wetland feature that recalls the pre-industrial marshland of the site. This park 
area draws on the Railyards Specific Plan for a Chinese Garden or Cultural Landscape to 
commemorate the work of Chinese laborers on the building of the Transcontinental Railroad and the 
Chinese community that once flourished along I Street. There will be a multi-use pathway through the 
Civic Plaza Park connecting the public right of way along I Street to the waterfront bike trail. 

To the west of the station, the existing parking lot under the elevated interstate viaduct is envisioned 
as a community park that will serve the residents of the site and downtown. “Viaduct Park” takes 
advantage of the large shaded and rain protected area and transforms the ground plane with various 
recreational amenities such as climbing rocks, skateboard areas, and other hardscape recreation 
opportunities and also provides designated area for an 8,000 square foot community garden and a 
separate dog park. This park area also is critical to linking the California State Railroad Museum 
(CSRM) of the California State Park System with adjacent resources. CSRM has plans for the 
rehabilitation of historic Erector Shop and the Boiler Shop that is now in state ownership and the 
functions proposed will connect to the current CSRM building at 2nd and I Street via the West End 
Tunnel that was constructed in Phase 1 along with the new rail track alignment. The overall park area 
totals 3.72 acres, which includes approximately .9 acres for stairs and ramps of the West End Tunnel 
improvements that are currently maintained with funds from the Railyards Community Finance District 
(CFD). 



Item #

The north side of the historic station where the new station building will be phased-in, a large shaded 
Transit Plaza is designed for the easy movement of people to their transit connections and for those 
who desire to relax and people watch, or enjoy patronizing a small restaurant. The 1.0 acre “Transit 
Plaza” is seen to be primarily serving transit users and residents and would rely on outside funding, 
not Park Impact Fees (PIF). 

Policy Considerations: Providing parks and recreation facilities is consistent with the Principles, 
Goals, and Policies of the 2016 Railyards Specific Plan, applicable goals and policies are as follows: 

Goal S-1: Maximize the use of sustainable development practices in the Plan Area

Policy S-1.19: Promote the development of numerous public gathering places to 
encourage social interaction, public events and refuge areas for 
pedestrians. 

Policy S-1.20: Ensure that a rich urban tree canopy and significant vegetation 
are provided in the Plan Area [Railyards Specific Plan Area] to 
provide a well-shaded and comfortable microclimate and curb 
stormwater runoff.

Policy S-1.21: Provide attractive and comfortable pedestrian spaces that 
incorporate shade trees for natural cooling and UV protection. 

Goal CC-1: Create an intensive mixed-use transit oriented urban environment that 
will become an integral part of the Central City. 

Policy CC-1.4: Create a pattern of open spaces and pedestrian ways that creates 
strong linkages with surrounding areas, contributes to a distinct 
sense of place, and results in a rich sequence of spatial 
experiences.

Goal OS-1: Provide a system of parks, open space, and recreational facilities that 
serve the needs of future residents and employees of the Plan Area 
and that enhance the overall identity of the Central City and the 
Railyards. 

Policy OS-1.1: Locate parks so they are accessible to the greatest concentration 
of employees and residents and are suitable for a wide range of 
age groups and recreational purposes. 

Policy OS-1.2: Design plazas, parks, and urban open spaces in association with 
important civic buildings or community gathering places. 

Policy OS-1.3: Utilize opportunities provided by planned open spaces to provide 
functional and attractive pedestrian and bicycle connections 
through the Plan Area and to adjacent open space areas such as 
the Riverfront.

Policy OS-1.6: Take advantage of remediated areas by reclaiming them for 
public open space

Economic Impacts: It is anticipated that the SVS Area Plan development will be financed through a 
sub-area fee district of the Railyards Finance District. This sub-area district will be deferred until such 
time when private development is forthcoming. It is also anticipated that park fees generated by on-
site housing and office would directly contribute to the Civic Plaza Park and Viaduct Park and transit-



Item #

related funds would apply to the Transit Plaza. To maintain the open space areas, a CFD would be 
established and a portion of maintenance for transit-related open space would draw from those 
agencies utilizing the station area.

Environmental Considerations: The park and plaza areas of the SVS Area Plan will be 
incorporated into an Amendment of the 2016 Railyards Specific Plan and will be reviewed as part of 
the scope of the Addendum to the 2016 Railyards FEIR.

Sustainability: The City of Sacramento has registered the SVS Area Plan with the International 
Living Futures Institute (ILFI) as a Living Community Challenge (LCC). The ILFI has become a 
leading organization in creating planning and building sustainability benchmarks that seek restorative 
levels of sustainability, rather than thresholds that merely do less harm to the environment. Biophilic 
Design – bringing constructed nature into human environments – is a major criterion of the LCC and 
such design is embedding in the plan and guidelines for the built environment as well.

Commission/Committee Action: Not Applicable

Rationale for Recommendation: Not Applicable 

Financial Considerations: Not Applicable 

Local Business Enterprise (LBE): Not Applicable



73

Section 5  |  Open Space and Public Realm

G Street

I Street Bridge

F Street

H Street

I StreetJ Street

I Street

6
th

 S
tr

e
e

t

6
th

 S
tr

e
e

t

5
th

 S
tr

e
e

t

4
th

 S
tr

e
e

t3
rd

 S
tr

e
e

t

2
n

d
 S

tr
e

e
t

Fr
o

n
t 

S
tr

e
e

t

REGENERATIVE GARDEN

SKATE PARK

ROCK CLIMBING AREA

DOG PARK

RAIN GARDEN

TRANSIT PLAZA

CIVIC PLAZA

CHINESE COMMEMORATIVE GARDEN

DOWNTOWN

PLAYGROUND

UPRR

I-5 

Viaduct

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 L
ig

h
t 

R
a

il

Station 

Concourse

Lot 40

 (South)

Lot 40 

(North)

SVS Block B  

(West)

SVS 

Block B  

(East)

SVS 

Block A

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 C

o
n

co
u

rs
e

Historic Station REA Building

Bus Mobility Center

N

0’ 200’100’ 400’

Figure 5.2    Sacramento Valley Station Area Plan


